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Notice

MNotdce is herehy given that the 41st (Forty-First) Annual General Meeting
(‘AGMY of the members of HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD (‘the
Company’) will be held on Thursday, September 11th, 2025 at 4:30 P.M. at
the registered office of the Company al Ground Floor, B-2 Realme Showroom,
Next To Liberty Optical, Nvmolotha Road, Dimapur, Nagaland, India, 797112

to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To recsive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company
for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 together with the Reports of the

Board of Direclors and Auwditors thereon,

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Chand Ratan Medi [DIN No: 0D34236835) who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himsell for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Tarak Nath Dey [DIN: 00343396) as the Managing
Director (also as a “Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel”) of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass the following resoluticn as Ordinary
Resolution:

“‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read
with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 {hereinafter referred to as the “"Act”) and the Companies {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory
modification{s) or re-enactment(s} thereof, for the time being in force] and the
applicable regulations of Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements| Regulations, 2015, as amended from
time to time, and the Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of
Directors and subject to such other consents and pcrmissions, as may be
required, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for the re-appointment of Mr. Tarak Nath Dey (DIN: 00343396) as the Managing
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Director (also as a “Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel”) of the Company, for a
further perind of 5 [Five) years with effect commencing from the conclusion of this
AGM till the 46th AGM of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation on such
terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory statement annexed hereto with
liberty to the Board of Directors to vary, amend or revise the remuneration within
the maximum ceiling and the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment in
aceordance with the pl'cl-'."ia:i{:nne: of the Act and as may be agreed to between the
Board of Directors and Mr. Tarak Nath Dey.”

. Re-appointment of Mr. Binod Humar Bihani (DIN: 02471328) as an
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5 consecutive
TEArE.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the bllowing resclution as a Special
Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 & 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
the rales made thersunder, Repulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements| Regulations,
2015 (including any statutory modificaion(s) or reenactmentis) thereof for the
tme being in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant
to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Board of Directors, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
aceorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani (DIN: 02471328), for
a sccond term of 5 (Five) consccutive years commencing from the conclusion of
this AGHM Hll the 4510 AGM of the Company, 1n reéspect of whom the Cotmpany has
received a notice in writing rom a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
Ael, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of Directer, as an Independent
Director of the Company, not liable 1o retire by rotation.™

Appointment of M/s. Mankani & Associates, Company Becrctaries |[Firm
Registration Number - S201BUP613300) as Secretarial Aunditors of the
Company

To consider and i thought 6t, to pass the following resolution as an COrdinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 204 and 179(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies ([(Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed thercunder,
Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listng Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modilicationis), re-enactment
thereol for ime bemg in force) and circulars issued thereunder from time to




time, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
the appointment of M/s. Mankani 8 Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm
Registration Number — S2018UP613300) as the Secretarial Auditors for the
Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years Le, from inancial
year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, on such remuncration as may be
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Secretanal Auditors,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Commuttee
of the Board, be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, martters and

things as may be deemed necessary and /or expedient in connection therewith
or incidental thereto, to give effect to the loregoing resolubion.”

By order of the Board of Directors,

e,
TARAK NATH DEY

MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN 00343396
DATE: 15.05.2025
PLACE: KOLKATA




NOTES:

. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and Rules
framed thereunder, in respect of the Special Business to be transacted during the
meeting s enclesed herewith and marked as Annexure-l. The recommendation
of the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(11) of the
Listing Regulations is alao provided in the said Statement.

. The information as required under Regulaton 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and
the Secretarial Standerd on General Meetings (55-2), issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of [ndia, relating to the business itern No. 2 | 3 and 4 is
enclosed herewith and marked as Annexure-IL

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM is entitled to appaint a proxy 1o attend and vote on his/her behalf, A proxy
necd not be 8 member of the company. The proxy in order to be effective should
be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the registered
office of the company not leas than 48 hours before the time for helding the
mecting.

In terms of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder,
a person can act as proxy on behall of Members not exceeding Ity [50) and
holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting righte. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by &
Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
Member,

. Corporate members intending to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 113 of the Act, a duly certified
frue copy of the Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney authonzing their
representativelg) to attend and vole on their behall at the Meeting

. In case of joinl holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher
in the arder of names will ke entitled to voie,

. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names
appear in the register of members / depositories as at closing hours of business,
or August 8, 20235,

[nvestors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of
[he Notice / Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. September 4,
2025 are requested to send the email communication to the Company at
hwpll Télpmail com and to the RTA at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com by
mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID to abtain the Login-1I} and
Pasaword for e-voting.




8. The voting rights of sharcholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e, September 4,
2025 A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice
for information purpose only.

. The sharcholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-
off date of September 4, 2025. The facility of c-voting would be provided once for
every folio [/ client id, irrespective of the number of joint holders.

10, Members holding shares in physical form are advised to file nominations SH-13
in respect of their shareholding in the Company, if not already registered and to
submil the same 1o the R&TA. The nomination form may be downloaded from the
Company's website: https:/ fhwpl.co.in/index.html

. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from September 5,
2025 to September 11, 2025 [both days inclasive) for the purpose of Annual
General Mecting,

12.The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, and the Repister of
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, shall be made électronically available for inspection by the
Members during the AGM by sending an email to hwpl I Titgpmail. com,

All decuments referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall also
be available for inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of

circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e., Thursday, September 11,
2025 at 4:30 p.m. Members secking to inspect such documents can send an e-
mail to hwpll TEpmail.com, mentioning their names, PAN, folio numbers / demat
account numbers and contact numbers.

13. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEEI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and
further circulars and notification issued in the context matter by MCA, Notice of
the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Eeport
2024-25 will alsa be available on the Companys  website
https:/ /hwpl.co.in/index.html and in the websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.2.,
the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India,

14.Any member desirous of obtaining hard copy of the said Notice along with the
Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 may send a request
to the Company at hwpll Wagmail.com, through his [ her registered e-mail
address, mentioning his / her name, PAN, folio numbers / demat account
numbers and contact number,

15.For receiving all communication (incduding Annual Report) from the Company
electronieally:

a] Members holding sharea in physical mode and who have not registered [/
upsdated. their email addresas with the Company are requested to register [/
update the same by writing to the Company with detadls of folio number and




attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at hwpll Yaemail.com, or to ETA at
nichetechpkinichetechpi.com

b] Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register [
update their email addresacs with the relevant Depository Participant.

16.Members are requested 1o:

a) intimate to the Secretarial Department / Company's RBegistrar and Transfer
Agent, Niche Technologies Pyt Ltd., changes, if any, pertaining to their
name, postal address with PIN, c-mail address, telephone [ mobile
numbers, Permanent Account Number [PAN) details linked with Aadhaar,
signature, mandates, nominations, power of attormey, bank details such
az, name of the bank and branch details, bank aceount number, MICE
cade, IFSC code, ete. m prescribed Form ISR-1 and ether forms (available
on the Company's wabsite atl https:/ 'hwpl.eo.in findex. hitml in terms of
SEBl Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024 /37
dated May 07, 2024 and SEB] Circular Moo SEBI/HO/MIRSD /POD-
1/P/CIR/2024 /8] dated June 10, 2024, in case of shares held in physical
form; and

intimate to the respective Depository Participant, changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone [
mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank
and hranch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC ende, ete., in
cage of shares held in dematerialized form.

17.In accordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI /0 /MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD1 /P/CIR/2023,/37 dated March 16, 2023, the
facility for making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the
shares held by thermn. Members are requested to submit the sald details to RTA In
case the shares are held in physical form and to their regpective DP in case the
sharez are held by them in dematerialized form.

18. Procedure for registration as speakers [ seek clarification:

a) Members willing to express theirviews or ask questions durnng the AGM
are required to register themeelves as speakers by sending their requests,
preferably from September 1, 2025 [10:00 a.m. IST) to September 5, 2025
(5:00 pm. I8T]. at bwpllTemail.com from their registered c-mail
addresses, mentioning Lheir names, folio numbers § demal accound
numbers, PAN details and mobile numbers. Only those Members who have
registered themszelves ag speakers will be allowed to express their views [/
azk questionsz during the AGM, The Company [/ the Chairman of the
Meeting reserves the right to restrict the number of questions, time allotted
and number of speakers to ensure smooth conduct of the AGM.

b} Any Member desirous of receiving any information en the Financial
Statements or Operadons of the Company 18 reguested to forward his [/
her guerviies) to the Company through e-mail at hwpll VEmmail com,
mentioning his / her name, folio numbers / demal account numbers, e-
mail addresses and mobile numbers, at least seven working days prior to
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19,

23,

the AGM, sn that the required information can be made available during
the AGM.

As per Regulation 12 of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule - T to the said
Regulations, it is mandatory for all the Companies to use bank details furnished
by the investors for distributing dividends, interests, redemption or repayment
amounts to them through National / Regional / Local Electronic Cleanng Services
[ECS) or Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) or National Eleclronic Funds
Transfer (NEFT], National Automated Clearing House [NACH|] wherever ECS
RTGS /| NEFT / NACH and bank details are available, In the absence of electronic
facility, Companies are regquired to mandatonly print bank details of the investors
on ‘payable-at par’ warrants, cheques or demand drafi for distribution of
Dividends or other cash benefits to the mvestors. In addition to that, if bank
details of investors are not available, Companies shall mandatorily print the
address af the investor on such payment instruments.

Therefore, Members holding shares in physical made, if any, are requested to
apdate their bank details with the Company or ETA immediately. Members
holding shares in demat mode are requested to record the ECS mandate with their
DPs concerned.

.ZBEB! vide its Circular No. SEBL/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _RTAME/P/CIR/2022/8

dated January 25, 2002 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in
dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. issue of duplicate
securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; rencwal
exchange of securities ceriificate; endorsement; sub-division [ splitting of
securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificales folios; ransmission
and transpositon.

Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requesis by submitting a
duly flled and signed Form ISE-4, the format of which is available on the
Company’s wehsite at hitps:/ fhwpl coin /index himl and on the RTA's website at
https:/ fnichetechpleom/. It may be noted that any service request can be
processed only after the folio is KYC Complian!.

In view of this, members holding shares in physical form, if any, are requested to
consider converting their holdings to dematenialized form. Members can contact
the Company or ETA in this regard.

.To support the *Green Inibative”, Members who have not registered their e-mail

addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all
communication including Annual Report, Nolces and Circulars etc, from the
Company electronically.

Members are requested (o quote the ledger folio ) DP ID in all communication
with the Company.

25.A Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the AGM of the Company
is given at the end of this Notice as per the requirement of the Secretanial Stancdard
on General Mectings.




24 Voting through electronic means:

a) As per the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act,
Fule 20 of the Companies [Management and Administration) Ruoles, 2014 and
amendments thereto, read with the MCA Circulars, the Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings [S3-27 issued w the Institute of Company Secreiaries of India and
Regulation 44 of the Listmeg Regulations, the Company is plesssd to faciliteie s
Members (o transact business of the AGM of the Company by vating through electronic
means. For this, the Compaty has engaged the services of CDXSL having office at A
Wingz, 34/35 Floor, Marathen Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbad - 00013, to provide remaote evoting services and e-voting
facility during the AGM, who are holding the shares as on the cui-off date,

The remote e-voting period commences at 900 am. IS8T on Monday, September 8,
2025 and ends at 300 pom, 13T on Wednesday, September 10, During this period, the
Members of the Company, holding sharea either in physical or dematerialized mode,
as on the cut-off date .o, Thursday, September 4, 2025 may cast their vote by remote
e-vobing, The remote e-voling moduwle shall be disabled by CIEL for voling therealter,
Croce the vote on & resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed
to change 1t subseqguently,

The facility for voting through electronic means shall be made available during the
AGM and the Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote -
voting shall be able to exercise their right during the AGM through electronic voting
gvstem. However, Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior wthe
AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitied 1o east their vole again.

The instructions to cast voles through remote e-voting and through e-voling system
during the AGM isenclosed herewith and marked as Annexure-I and the same shall
form part of this Notice.

253, In order to scrutinize the e-volng process in a fair and transparent manner, Ms, Priva
Mankani (ACEH - 34744, CP Mo 17947) of Ms. Mankani & Aszociates, Company
Secretaries, Kolkata, has been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the
Serutinizer,

26. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclugion of voting at the AGM, unblock the
voles edst tThrough electrenic voling syvsiem provided doring the AGM and remole e=voling
in the presence of 2t leagt two witnegses, not in the employment of the Company and
make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Beport of the toral votes cast in favour or against, if
any, noi later than 3 (Three) days of conclusion of the AGM or within 2 (Two) working days
of conclusion of the AGM, whichever is eanlier, The Scrutinizer thereafier shall submit the
said Report to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writinog who shall
countersign the same and declare within the stipulated tinwe, the results of the voting
forthwith, The resolution(s) shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, subpoct
b receipt of requasite number of votes.

27T, The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Heport shall be placed on the website of
the Company .2, ittps: /) hwploodn/index. himland on the website of COSL immedintely
after the results arve declared by the Chasrman or a person autharised by him in weiting,
The same shall be communicated by the Company to the stock exchange,




Annexure-]

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PUREUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

[tem No. 3

The Membera of the Company, vide its 36th Annual General Meeting held on
September 23, 2020, had approved the ro-appointment of Mr, Tarak Nath Dey
(DIN: 00343396) as the Managing Director (also “Whole-time Kcy Managerial
Personnel”) for a period of 5 (Five) years till the 415t AGM of the Company. The
Board has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and subject to the approval of the Members, approved the re-
appointment of Mr. Tarak Nath Dey, Managing Directer, post completion of his
term, for a further period of 5 (Five] years from the conclusion of this AGM till the
46t AGM of the Company not lable te retire by rotation, Mr, Tarak Nath Doy hes
given his consent to act as a Director of the Company, along with a declaration in
Form DIR - 8 staling that he is not disgualified from being re-appointed as the
Managing Director in terms of Secoon 164 of the Act. He satisfies all the
conditions as set out in Section 196(3) of the Act and Part-1 of Bchedule V ta the
Act, for being eligible for his re-appointment.

The broad terms and conditions of the proposed re-appointment of and
remuneration to Mr, Tarak Nath Dey are mentioned below,

# Mr. Tarak Nath Dey shall not draw any salary, perquisites or other
remmuneration during his tenure as Managing Director;

However, the Board of Directors shall have the liberty to revise, vary or amend
the terms of his remuneration, including pavment of salary, penguisiles or
other benefits, within the overall limits as may be prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and/or as approved by the Members of the Company,

from time to tame

Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani, Independent Director had been appointed by the
Members at the 36" Annual General Meeting held on September 23, 2020 for a
term of 5 (Five) consecutive years till the conclusion of the 41st AGM of the
Company. Based on rich experience, professionsl skill, knowledge, continuerd
valuable guidance to the management and the contributions made by Mr. Binod
Kumar Bihani during his association with the Company and also on the basis of
his performance evaluation, the Board of Directors of the Company has, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, considered it
desirable that it shall be in the interest of the Company to continue to avail the
services of Mr. Bihani, as an Independent Director of the Company.

Further, in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Bihani fulfils the conditions specified in
the Act read with Schedule 1V to the Act and Rules made thereunder and also
under the Listing Repulations [or re-appointment as an Independent Director of
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the Company. Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani is independent of the Management of the
Company. It is therefore proposed to re-appoint him a8 an Independeant Director
of the Company, o hold office for a gsecond term of 5 (Five) conseculive vears,
cammencing ftom the conchusion of this AGM 1l the 46% AGM of the Company,
with a peried of office not liable to retire by rotation, The details of Mr. Bihani are
provided in the Annexure-II to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of the Listing
Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Mestings. Mr, Bihani is eligible
and iz not disqualified from being re-appointed as Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and has conegented to continue as an Independent Director of the
Company. The Company has also received a declaration that he meets with the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Secton 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations.

Name of the Companies in which Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani holds directorship
ather than the Company are:

8l.No Name of the Company Deslponation ‘

Sangrahalaya Timber & Crafts Ltd_
| Maurya Trading Co. Ltd

Purbanchal Prestressed Ll | Independent Director ‘

The Company has pursuaant to Section 160 of the Act, received notice, In writing,
from a Member proposing his candidature for re-appointment as an Independent
Director,

All relevant documents concerning re-appointment of Mr, Binod Kumar Bihani as
an Independent Director shall be open for inspection without any fee by the
Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, ie.,
Thursday, September 11, 2025,

None of the Directors [/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives excepl Mr. Binod Kumar Bihand are concerned or interested [Anancially
or otherwise], in the proposed resolution to be passed as a Special Resolution.,
The Board recommends the Speciel Resolution as set out in [tem No. 4 of the
Notice, for approval of the Members of the Company.

Item No. &

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (*the Act”) and Regulation
24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 [*Listing Regulations®]. M/s. Mankeni & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries (Firm Repistration Number - S52018UP613300) has served as
secretarial Anditors of the Campany lor previous nancial years

Regulation 244 of the Listing Regulations, inter alia, provides that with effect from
Iat April 2025, the Company iz required to appoint a Practicing Company
Secretary for not more than one term of five consecutive years or a firm of
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Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for not more than two
lerms of five consecutive years, with the approval of the members at its Annual
CGeneral Mecting [*"AGM™) and such Sceretarial Auditors(s) must be a peer reviewed
company secretary and should not have incurred any of the disqgualifications as
specified under the Listing Kegulations. Further, as per the said Regulation, any
association of the individual or the firm as the Becretarial Auditor{s] of the
Company before 318t March 2025 shall not be considered for the purpose of
calculating the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor{s).

M/s. Mankani & Associates is a reputed Practicding Company Secretary [irm
established in 2018 by Ms. Priya Mankani, an Associate Member of the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India [*ICSI"), having a team of experienced and
gualified company secretaries. Over the years, they have built a diverse client
hasge, serving corporatea across the country. [ts clientele spans companies ACTNss
variowus business sectors and they offer a wide range of services, inclading
secrelarial audils, corporate governance consulting, certifications, and regulatory
advisory.

Taking into account the above requirements, along with an evaluation of
proposals received by the Company and the consideration of factors such as
technical skills, independence, industry experience, expertise, audilt partners,
audit team, quality of audit practices, and past association with the Company,
the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committes, has
approved the appaintment of M/s. Mankani & Associates, Practicing Company
Secrelaries (Firm Registration Number - B2018UP613300) as Secretarial Auditors
of the Company [or & term of five conaccutive years, to hold office from the
conclusion of this AGM till the conchusion of $6% AGHM of the Company to be held
in the Year 2030, covering the period from the linancial year ending on 31st March
2026 tll financial year ending 31s: March 2030, subject to the approval of the
members of the Company.

The Board of Directors in consullation with the Audit Committee and M/s.
Mankani & Associates, fxed the remuneration payable for the financial year
2025-26 at ¥ ¥.500 /- (Rupees seven thousand five hundred only), plus any out-
of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the audit and other
applicable taxes,

The Company has received written consent from Mjs. Mankani & Associates
confirming their eligibility and willingness te be appointed as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company. They have also confirmed that they meet the
requiremnents to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, and they hold a valid certificate
issued by the Peer Review Board of IC3] and that they have not incurred any of
the disqualifications as specitied by the KBl The appointment, if made, complics
with the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The Board of
Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee and M/s. Mankan: &
Associates, may alter or vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including
remuneration, in such manner and to such extent ag may be mutually agreed,




Nane of the Directors, Keyv Manapgerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are, in any way, concernaed of interested, inancially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at l[fem No. 5 of the accompanying Notice of the 41at AGM.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends aforesaid appointment 1o the
members for their approval by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out at [tem
No. 4 of the accompanying Notice of the 415t AGM.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Pl

Date: 15,05.2025 W/ Tarak mtbﬁ
Flace: Kolkata ="  Managing Director
DIN: 00343396




Annexure-IT

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS SEEEING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE
FORTHCOMING AGM

[Pursuant to Repulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General
l;lrrr'inﬂﬁ:]

Particulars Item No.3 | Item No.$

i [tem Mo, 2

| M. Pinodd Kumar |
| Bihani |

Hame of
Director

the i Mr. Chand Ratan Modi Mr. Tarak Nath Dey

(DIN: O0343685) [DIN:0034 3306 i
| (DIN: 02471328)
|

| March 30, 1960

Date of birth i';in.'ili-'i'f , 1959 December 1, 1969

Age b 56 63

[ndiar

Nationality Trnafian Inclian

Bachelor's degree  in
Commerse  foom the
Liniversity of Rajasthan,

"He holde a Bachelor's
degmres  in  Commerce
from the Universlty of
Calcuts

Bachelor's degree  in
Commernee  rom  the
Univeraity of Calcutha

Qualilications

Profile, expericnce
and expertise o
specific funetisnal
ETEAS

than
successilly
VATIIE
projects.

He has beon associated
with the Company since
19099, amd has been &
prominent figure in the
real estate sector for more

decades,
leadimg
1'|iE|1'|-;'|rl,|['1'|!:

He has been associated
withh  the Company
gince 2010 and has
over 30 years of
leadership expeoricnos
in the industry. Since
iten, he has been an
integral part of our
organisation,

ot g hiz
valuable cxpertise
across different facets

He haz been asspciated
with Ehyes ﬂn'rrlpun:,r
gigce 2020 and has
over 35  yeare of
expericnce  im the
incdusiry. He

invalved in
contributing . to

pverall sirategic vision
and cffering puidance

ol hey Buisiress

| issues, without being

He is at the helm of overall
stratepic decizion-making of  the
of the Company and
pn’_ll.jr,]:g |1-n|;,5|-|‘:1'n|"|ir.| to all
operations.

business. | directly mvolved in
day-te-day operations.
He holds a Bachelor’s

degree in  Commerce

With a wealth of
experience o both

and

resicderntial
commercial real estate,
e OVETREES the
stratemc direction,
operationsal

mAnEgement, and
financial performance
of the organization.
Under his leadership,

the company has scen
gignificant growth i
market capitalization
and prioject
| completions,

| from the University of
| Caleutta, In addition to
his. solid  financal
literacy, he possecsses
the required expertise
in both accounting and
financal management,
contributing o a well-
roundedd
understanding of these
esgential areas,
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firat
{1

of

appointment
the Board

Augnst 22, 19599

March 3, 2010

| Beptember 28, 2020

Sharcholding in
the Comparny
fincluding
shareholdmg as a
beneficial ownier)

Relationship with
other Directors,
Manager or with
KnMP

Number of
meetings attended
during the
financial YEar
20E4-25

List
Directorships held
m ather Public
Companies
fexcluding foreign
Companies  and
Companies under
Bection & of the
Companiss  Act,
201.3]

of outside

Father of Mrs. Chonchal
Rungta.

No. of meetings heid; 5

Mo of meetinga attended:
&

1] Purbarnchal Prestressed
Led

2] Maurya Trading Co, Lid

3] Sangrahalaya  Timber
and Crafis Led

4] Kamini Finanoce and
Investmment Co, Lid

) Morth Bastern
Publishing and
Advertising Co Lid

Mo, of meetin'_é;ﬂ held: 5

M. of
atiended: 3

mestinga

Mo, -:;l' TI'.I.I:tt-i.:l'.I.EEI held:5

Mo. af
attended: 5

mectings

I, Eangahaiaya
Timber and Crafts
Lotk

1} Sangrahalava Timber
fnd Cralts Lid

L) Puibanchal
Prestresaed Lid

3 Maura Trading Ca.
Laed

The Listed ety
froim which
Drrector has=
regsigned N last
three vears

Mg

Chairman !
member of the
Committess if
Board of Directors
oxl other
GO RIies in
which he i3 a
[Mresctar

of
or

conditions
Appomtment
Re-appointment

1) Sangrahalava

Timber ancd

Lt

North Eastern

Publishing and

Advertising Co, Lid

4] Kamini Finance &
lywestment Co, Lid.

Crafts

2)

Mr. Chand Eatan Maod: is
liable to retire by rotation.

1) Maurva Trading
Co. Lad
Purhanchal
Prestressed Lid
Sangrahalava
Timber And
Crafts Lid

2)

3

As per the resalution
fleerm Mo.3) of

Explanatory

statements thereto,
Mr. Tarak Nath Dwey is
proposed to b=
appamted for a term of
5 (|Five] consecutive

the |
Notice convening this |
meeting  read  with |

| Az per the resolution
{ (Iltem MNo.4] of the
Motice comwening this
meeting read with
Explanatory

statements thereta,
Mr. Bingd Kumar
Bihanti 15 propossd to
be -appointed for a
gecond term of 5 (Five)




YEATE mmm:nf.lng_ consceu i YERFS
from the conclusion of | commencing from the
thiz AGM il the 46th | conclusion of this AGM
ACGM of the Company, | till the 46th AGM af the

'I:url:li:l‘.'l .

Remuneration | : NIL
propoged to be |
paird

| Remuneration last
drewn by such
pETEOn, if
applicahle {As per
1= audited
balance sheet
dated March 31,
2024

*Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee.

In addition to the above, other requisite details required relating to aforesand
appointment / re-appointment have already been provided elsewhere in the
Board’'s Report.




THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-WVOTING ARE AS UNDER:
The way to voie clectronically om CDSL e-Voting svstem congists of *Two Steps” which are
mentioned helow:

otep 1: Acceas to COSL e-Voting system
Step 2 Cast your vole eleetronically on COSL e-Voting system

Cretanls on Step 1 s mentioned below)

[a} Login method for e-Voting for Individual Shareholders holding securitics in demat
mode

In terma of 3EB] ciccular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Votineg facilily provided by the Liated
Companica, Individual Shareholders bolding secunties o demat mode are allowed to vole
through thelr demat account mainteined with Depositories and Depositorny Participants.
Shareholders are advised (o update their mobile number and email [d in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Yoting faciliby

Login methed for Individual shareholders helding securitics in demat mode is given below:

Type Login Method
gshareholders

1} Existing users who have opted for Easi | Easiest:

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in
Dremmiat mode with
CDEL

Users who have opted for Easi [ Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available 1o reach
e-Yoting page without any further authentication. The users to login
Easl [ Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www cdslindis.com
and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then nse vour
existing Myeasi usernume & passeord.,

After succegsful login the Eagi / Easiesl user will be gable to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-Voting 15 in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-Votng
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote «-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the mesting. Additionally, there
are glso links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Servios
Providers, =0 that the user can visit the o-Voting service providers
weshisite rHr\e_'r:H_'_.' The mreerie will have links of g--"..ﬁ:ﬁng_ BETe ]'lrl_w'uh-r
e, COEL. Click on CDEL to cast your vote.




3] Users not registered for Easi [ Easiest:

[f the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is
availahle at CHEL website www cdslindia, com and click on login & New
Sretem Myveasi Tab and then click on registration option

Alterpatively, the user can directly access e-Veting page by providing
Demal Avcount Mumber and PAN No, from an e-Voting link available
on wwyw.cdslindiz.com home page. The systerm will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registersd Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After suscessful authentication, user will be able to
zee the e-Voting option where the e-Voting is in progress and also able
b dlirectly access the system of all e-Yoling Service Providers.

Individual

Sharcholders
Holding securities in 1 Uzers registerad for NEDL IDeAS facility:

demat mode with o : . ;
NSO Existing 1DeAS user can visid the e-Services website of NEDL vis.

httpa:/ feservices. nadl.com either on a personal computer or on a
mobile, On the e-S8ervices home page, click on the "Beoelicial Owner™
icom under “Login” which is available under TDeAS' section, this will
prompt vou bo enter your existing User [D and Password. After
guccesaful authentication, you will be able to =zee cVoling services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Vobing” under e-
Voting services and vou will be able to see e-Vobing page: Chick on
Company name or &-Yoting service provider Le,, CDEL and vou will be
re.direct=d to e Vating wehsite of CDSL for casting your wote during the
remote o-Yating period & voting during the meeting,

Users not registered for WSDL IDeAS facility:

Il you -are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at htips:/ feservices nadl com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS Partel™ or click at
https:/ fescrvices, nadlcom / SecureWeb / IdeasDireciBeg, [ 5p

e-Voting website of NSDL:

Vigit the e-Veting website of NEDL, Cpen web browser by typing the
following URL:

hitps: ! Svoerw.evoting nsdloomf sither on & personal computer or ana
o bile,

Once the home page of e-Voting svstem is launched, click on the icon
*Logmm™

which iz available under Sharcholder / Member' section. A new
screen will open.

You will have to enter your User 1D (i, your sixteen-digit demat
account number




held with NSDL), Password [ OTF and a Verification Code as shown
o the screen.

Alter suceeaslul authentieation, yeu will be redirected to MNMEDL
Depository sibe

wherein vou can gee 2-Yoting page. Click on Company name or e-Yoiing
HETVICE

provider i.e., CDEL and vou will be redirected to e-Voting website of
COSL for

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period & voting during the
TThes ring

OTP Based Login

For oTP based login Vil can click
on https: ! feservices. nadleom [ SecureWebf evoting fevotinglogin, jsp.
You will bave to enter your B-digic P ID,8-cdigit Chent Id, PAN No.,
Verification code and penerate OTP. Enter the OTPF received on
registersl email id/ mobile number-and olick on login, After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can sen o-Voling page, Click on company name of ¢-Yoting
service provider mame and you will be re-ldirected 10 e-Voting service
provider wabaite for casting wvour vote during the remols e-Voling
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meefing,

e-Voting mohile application of NSDL:

Sharcholders / Members can also download NSPL Mobile App "NSDL
Epm:r'lr-“ fur'ili.lll,-' 1':_'_.' B nninE the I:!IF? code mentione] below [or seamless
voling experienice.

NSDL Mobile App is availlable on

i AppStore B Google Play

Individual
Sharcholders
iholding securities in
demat mode] Engin
through ther

rlq_-.i;u JH“!TI‘:‘
participants

You can also lagin using the lagin credentials of your demat acoount throagh
vour Depository Participant registersd with NSDL [ CDSL for e-Voting facility.
Upon logging in, vou will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Vobing
opticn, you will be medirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful
authenticaticn, wherein you can see e-Yoting feature. Click on Company name
or &-Voling service provider Le., CDSL and vou will be redirected Lo e-Voting
webgite of CDSL for casting vour vate during the remote e-Yoting period &
voting durnng the meeting,

Impatant fnades MembBers wha are unalyle ta eeirieve Uger (D ) Fageword ant adviged by use Fonoel
User 10 o Forget Passwored opstion sl bbe st abeeee men doned websile,
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Hel 4 Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
isgues related to lomin through Depository e, NSDL and CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
arcurities in Demat mode with CDSL can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at heipdesk.evotinggiodslindia.com  or
contact at toll free fo. 180021 094511

Individual Sharchelders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
reqguest al evolingrimsdl co.in orcall at @ 022
- 4886 TOM and 022 - 2499 7000

{b) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual sharchoelders holding sccuritics in demat mode and sharcholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log=in to CIEL e-Voling website?

1. Vigil the e-Voling website of CDEL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

2. Onee the home page of e-Voting syatem is launched, click on the icon "Login™ which is
available under Shareholder ¢ Member' seetion,

3. A new gereen will open. Yoo will have to enter your User 1D, vour Paseword ! OTP and
a Verfication Code as shown on the screen,

Allernabively, i vou are registered for NSDL e-services Le., [DEAS, vou can log-in at
hitpa: / feservices. nadl.com | with vour existine, [DEAS lopin, Onee vou loe-in to NEDL e-
services after using vour log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 e, Cast your vobte clectronically,

4_Your User ID detaile are given bhelow:

SL.No, | Manner of hUEII‘IR shares i.e., Demat | Your User [D is:

‘ [MEDL or COSL) or Physical

For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP ID followed by & Eiﬁ]_f_
Account with NSDT, Client T,

For exaemple, if vour DP ID is IN30DO" % g
Client 1T iz 13##%%%* fhen vour user [0 is
lﬂaﬂuikrliﬂlt!ﬁl

For Members who held shares oy demat | 16 Digit Beneficiasy 1D,
accaunt with CDSL
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For cﬁéﬁf&.— if your Beneficiary [D is
jaEanEtieakaaiey  fhen your user 1D i\

1 -Elli-lil b A

For Members holdmg shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form registored with the Company

For examples, if folio number 150015 amd
EVEN iz 130720 then user 1 is
[ 3072000 T

H, Password details for shareholders aother than Individual shareholders are given below

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then vou can use your existing password to
login and cast yvour vote.

If vou are uzing CO8L «-Voling svstem for the first tme, enter your 10 digit alpha-
numertc PAN iasucd by Income Tax Department,

Howewver, sharcholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company [
Deposttory  Participant are reguested to use the sequence number sent by
Company/ RTA or comtact Company / RTA,

Enter the Dividend Bank Detaidls or Date of Birth &85 cecorded in your demal ascount
or in the company records in order to login. If both the details are not recorded with

the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend
Hank details held

After r.*:rl.frrirl.ﬂ thess details :u|:|'|-:|:'|-1"rr:[:rrL;-'l.I!:*|_I,.'ll click an “SUHEMIT® tah

. Bhareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
gelechon screen, However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
Password Creation’ menw wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
pasgword in the now password field, Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-vating through ODSL platform.,
It is strongly recommended not o share your passwond with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For sharsholders haolding shares in physical form, the detaila can be naed only for e-
1.-'|1Hn1_.:_' an the resoluiions contained in this Notioe.

. Click on the EV3HN for the Company Namse on which you choose to vote. On the voting
page, vour will see *“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and agamst the same the oplion
“YES/MO" for voling, Select the option YES or KO as desired. The option YES implics
that yvou sssent to the Besolution and option NO imples that you dissent 1o the
Resslition.




h. Clicle on the *RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution
detaile, After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBEMIT®,
A confirmation box will be displayed, I you wish to confirm vour vote, click on *0K”,
clae to change your vobe, click on *CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you *CONFIEM™ your vote on the resslution, vou will not be allvwed 1o modily
your voté, You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to
print” aption on the Voting page, Il 8 demat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User I and the imege verification code and click on Forgot
Paswwoerd & enter the details as prompted by the syatem

Thers is also an optisnal provision {o upload BE/POA I any uploaded, which will be
made available to scrutinizer for verification.

[¢} Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -Remote Voting

Mon-Individual sharcholders e, othér than Individuals, HUF, NREI ste| and

the “*Corporates” modbe
& scanmed copy of the Eegistration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entiay

ghould be emailed to helpdesk cvatinpimedalindia . cormn.

After receiving the login detsils a Compliance User ghould be created using the admin

legin and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.
The Tzt of aceounts lnked o the login should be mailed fo

helpclesk evoting@edstindia vom and on approval of the accounts they would be able

to cast their vote,

A scanmed copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Atterney [POA) which they have
igmued m favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
gystem for the scrutinizer to werify the same,

Alternatively, non-individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution, Authority letter eico topother with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized (o vote, o the Scrutinizer and o the Company at
the email address viz; hwpll Tdgmail.com, i they have voted from individual tab & not
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same




PROCESE FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES
ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING
LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS
PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical sharcholders- please provide necessary details like Falio
Mo., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certiicate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demal account detials
(CDEL-16 digit benehiciary [D or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name,
client master or copy of Consclidated Account statement, PAN (sell
attested scanned copy of PAN card], AADHAR |[self attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

Tfvou have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voring from
the CDEL e-Volng System, you can wnte an cemal to
helpdesk evotingiedslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542 /43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means
may be addressed to, Manager, [CDSL| Central Depository Services (India)
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel [East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to

1. M/s. Mankani &  associates- Mrs, Priva Mankeni, Practising Company
Gecretary has beesn appomnted as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e voting
process in a fair and transparent manmncr. The Scrutinizer shall not later than
Hthree) days of conclusion of the meeting make a consolidated scrutinizer's
Report fwhich inchudes remote e-voting and e-voting dunng the AGM) of the
total votes cast in favour or ggainst, if any, to the Chairman or a4 person
authorised by her in wnting who shall countersign the same and declare the
results of the voting forthwith.

. subject to casting of requisite number of votes in favour of the resolution{s), it
shall be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM of the Company.

3. The results declared along with the Serutineer’s Beport shall be placed on the
Company’s webgite https) ) /hwplooin/index himl] and on the website of
CD3L immediately after declaration of results of passing of the resolution at
the AGM of the Company and the same shaoll alse be communicated to the
Metropolitan Stoclk Exchange of India where the shares of the Company are
listed.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Folio No.: DP-{D No.. Client-ID) No.

Name af
Member(s):

Name of the Proxy holder:

Registered Address:

Number of Shares Held

I, hereby record my presence of the 415t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company held on Thursday, September 11, 2025 at 4:30 P.M. at Ground Floor,
B-2 Realme Showroom, Next To Liberty Optical, Nymolotha Read, Dimapur,
Nagaland, ndia, 797112

Signature of the Member / Representative / Froxy Holder*
* Strike out whichever is not applicable




FORM OF PROXY
fPursuant to Section 1056} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 192(2) of the Comparnies
fManagemeant and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Falio Noo: DRI Niea.: Client I No,:

Neome of the Member(zs}); - Email fd:
Registered Address:

[y We, being  members, holding shares of HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD hereby
appoint;

! Neamea; E-mail Id
Adidress! or faiting him,/ her

2. Name: E-muatf Id

Address: or failing him/ her

3. Nome: E-ma Jd

Address:

as my [/ our Proxy to vots for me / us, on my / our behalf at the 41st ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING of the Compony heid on Thursday, September 11, 2025 ot 4:30 P.M.
and al any adjournment thereof in respect of the resolulions as mentioned in the
Company's Noltce. :

Signed this claag e 2025, Signature of Member

Revemne

Sigmature of Proxy holder{s): 1.

2

—

5

NOTE: The Form of Proxy duly compleled must be depasited al the Registered Office of
the Comgrany, Growund Fioor, B-2 Bealme Showroom, Next To Liberty Optical, Nymolotho
Fouad, Dimapur, Nagalond, India, 797112 not later than 48 hours before the ime for
holding the meeting.




Route map for the location of the venue of the 41st Annual General
Meeting of Hotahoti Wood Products Ltd.




Board’s Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2015

The Directors are pleased to present the 4 1st Annual Report on the business and
operations of Hotahoti Wood Products Ltd. (“the Company”] together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

Financial Highlights

During the year under review, performance of your company is 835 under:
(2 in 000)

——

Particulars

2024-25

Revenue from Operations

g

187

Tatal Income

187

2023-29

104

517
920

Less: Expenditure

42325

fedat

Profit belore Tax

(4038)

3341

Provision for Taxalion

4]

0

last year

Profit / Loss for the vear alter Tax |
Add: Balance brought forward from (7T0339)

(4038)

3341

(73030)

the RBI Act, 134

Transfcrred to Reserve u/f/s 45-1C of

bos

1o Balance Sheet

Balance Profit / Loss carried forward)| (74377)

(70339

Operations and State of Company’s Affairs

The Company’s performance is influenced by a range ol factors, including
market dynamics and external conditions. While we continue to actively navigate
aned mitigate these challenges, we remain optimistic about the Company’s future

prospects.
Dividend

Considering the non-availability of profits during the [Inancial yvear ended March
31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company has not propased any dividend
on equity shares.




Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of your Cempany is ¥ 20,01,00,000 /- divided into
2,00,10,000 Equity Shares of face value of T10/- each.

The lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your Company is 2
19,99,99 600/ - divided into 19,99,99,60 Equity Shares of face value of 2 10/-

e,

There is no change in the lssued, Subseribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the
Company during the year under review.

General Reserves

No amount has been transferred to the General Reserve for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025,

NBFC Reserve Fund

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to the NBFC Reserve
Fund pursuant to the provisions of Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, as the Company incurred a loss during the year.

Material Changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year
to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between the end of the inancial year of the Company
ta which the financial statements relate and the date on which this Report
has been signed.

Change in the nature of Business, if any.

The Company is engaged in Nen-Banking Financial activity and is duly
registered with the REI as an NBFC Company. There has been no change(s) of
business of the Company or in the nature of business carried on by the Company
during the financial yvear under review,




Significant and material orders passed by the regulators / courts /
tribunals impacting the pgoing concern status and the Company's
operations in future

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been
passced by the regulators / courts / tribunals that may impact the going concern
status and the operations of the Company in future.

Particulars of contracts and arrangement with Related Parties

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties during the
financial year 2024-25 as delined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014
were held in the Ordinary Course of Business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis,
There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the
financial vear 2024-25, which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.
Stutable disclosures as required under Ind AS-24 have been made 11 the Notes
to the financial statements.

Accordingly, the disclosure in Form AOQC-2, pursuant o section 134(3)(h) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies [(Accounts) Rules,
2014 1= not applicable on the Company. The policy on HRelated Party
Transactons can be accessed on the website of the Company
https://hwpl.co.in/index. html

Internal Control Systems and Their Adegquacy

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect
from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are
praperly authorized, recorded and reported to the Manapement. The Company
is [ollowing all the applicable Accounting Standarcds for properly maintaining the
books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of
the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in
accardance with policy adopted by the company.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, no Corporate Insolvency Resolution application
was made or proceeding was intiated by [/ against the Company under the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (as amended). Further,
no application or proceeding by / against the Company under the provisions of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (as amended) is pending as on March
31, 2025.




Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture, or Associate
Company as defined under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2012,

REI Directive to NBFC

The Company did not invite or accept any deposits from the public during the
finencial year ended March 31, 2025. Further, for the financial year commencing
April 1, 2025, the Board of Directors, through a resolution passed at its meeting,
has confirmed that the Company shall not invite or accept any deposits from the
public during the financial year 2025-26.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Compames Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, ne unclaimed / unpaid matured deposits or
interesi thereon was due as on March 31, 2025.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies ({Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, CSR is not applicable
to the Company during the financial year under review. Accordingly, no CSR
initiatives or expenditures were undertaleen,

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The provision of Section 134{m) of the Companies Acl, 2013 relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption do not apply to the Company,
There was no foreign inflow or outflow during the year under review.

Risk Management Policy

The Company's Risk Management Policy recognizes that risk is an integral
part of any business and the Company is committed to manage the risk in a
proactive and efficient manner,




Number of Board Meetings

During the year, 5 (five) mectings of the Board were held, The details of meetings
of the Board held duritig the inancial year 2024-25 have been provided in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of the Report.

Audit Committee

The details pertaming to the composition of the Audit Committee are incladed
in the Corporate Governance Report which is a pari of this Report.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92(3) and 134{3)(a| of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual
Returmm as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company's webzsite

https:/ /hwpl.co.in/index.html

Details of significant & material orders passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunal

No significant & material orders have been passed by any regulator or court or
tribunal against the Company.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower peolicy and it has
cstablished adeguate vigil mechanism for its employees and directors o report
concern about unethical practice. No person has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The latest Vigil Mechanism / Whisile Blower
Policy is available at httpa:/ fhwpl.co.in/index.himl

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaid funelsimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the
provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act; 2013 do not apply.

Internal Auditor

M /s, Gaurav Manoj & Co., practicing chartered accountants, perform the duties
of Internal Auditor of the Company and his report is reviewed by the Audit
Committee from time to time.




Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Your Company's Board is duly constituted in compliance with the requirement
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securines and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*Listing
Regulations”)

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet with the criteria of

independence as required under sub section 7 of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations.

The Board is also of the opinion that Independent Directors meet with the criteria
of independence under sub section 6 of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.

There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company.

All the lndependent Directors have registered themselves / renewed their
registration pursuant to the Companies (Creation and Maintenance of databank
of Independent Directors] Rules, 2019,

The Board confirms thal the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of
intcgrity, cxpertise and experience (including the proficiency) in terms of Rule
B(5) (ilia) of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Following re-appointment of Directors had been made during the year:

a. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule
V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
[hereinalter referred to as the "Act”] and the Companies (Appeintment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory
modification{s) or re-enactment(s) thereol, for the time being 1n loree| and the
applicable regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time o time, and the Articles of Association of the Company and
pursuant to the recommendation of the Nommation and Remuneralion
Committee antd Board of Directors and subject to such other consents and
permissions, as may be required, the approval of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr, Tarak
Nath Dey (DIN: 00343396) as the Managing Director (also as a “Whole-time
Key Managerial Personnel®) of the Company, for a further perind of 5 [Five)
years with effect commencing from the conclusion of this AGM ull the 46th
AGM of the Company, not hable to retire by rotation on such terms and
conditions as applicable,




b. Pursuant o Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr, Chand Ratan Modi
(DIN No: 00343685), Non — Executive Non-Independent Director, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himsell for re-appointment atl the cnsuing
Annual General Meeting,

- Mr, Binod Kumar Bihani, Independent Director had been appointed by the
Members at the 36™ Annual General Meeting held on September 23, 2020
for & term of 5 (Five) consecutive years till the conclusion of the 41st AGM of
the Company. The said lenure will expire due 1o efllux of time. The Board
vide its Meeting held on May 15, 2025 had approved the re-appointment of
Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years,
commencing from the conclusion of this AGM till the 46th AGM of the
Company, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Mecting.. The briel profile of Mr. Bihani and other relevant
information under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings with respect to Director secking re-
appoinment have been provided in the Notice convening Annual General
Meelung.

Key Managerial Personnel Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the

Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025
are:

a. Mr. Tarak Nath Dey, Manaping Director.

b, Ms. Trpty Modi, Chief Finangial CHficer
e. Mr. Pawan Kr Tiwari, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company has put in place an Induction and Familiarisation Programme for
Independent Directors of the Company. The details of such Familiarization
Programme are mentioned in the Report on Corporate Governance, which lorms
part of this Annual Report and the same is available at the link
https: / /hwpl.co.in/index.html

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

In terms of requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing Regulations, the meeting ol Independent Directors was separately held
on February 12, 2025 during the vear under report.

Company’s Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors

The Company has been following a policy namely "Nomimabion and
Remuneration Policy” with respect to appeintment and remmaneration of
Directars, Kev Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel.
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The appointment of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel is subject
to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).

Nomination and Remuncration Policy

The Nomination and Bemuneration Policy of the Company is in conformity with
the requirement of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations. The objectives and key features of this Palicy are:

1. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive
attributes and independence of the Directors, Keyv Managerial Personnel (KMP)
and Senior Management Personnel and recommend to the Board, a policy
relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees.

1A. For every appointment of an Independent Director, the Committee shall
evaluate the balance af skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on
the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an Independent Director shall have the capabilities identified in
such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Committec may;

a. Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard o
diversily; and

c. Consider the time commitments of the candidates.
2. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

3. Identifyving persons who are qualified to become Directors and persons who
may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management;

4. Directors’ induction and continued updation as and when required of their
roles, responsibilities and liabilities;

5. Formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, its
Committees and Directors including Independent Directors / Non-Executive
Directors;

The aforesaid Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been uploaded on the
website of your Company at hitps: //hwpl.co in/index. html

Secretarial Standards

The Company has devised adequate systems to ensure compliance with the
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and such systems are operating effectively

ar




Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 13445]) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act?);, your
Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, il any,

b} the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consisiently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as-at March 31, 2025 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

¢] the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adeqguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

salepuarding the asscts of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregulanities;

d} the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e] proper internal financial controls are followed by the Company and that such
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

{} the Directors had devised proper systems 1o ensure compliance with the

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31, 2023,

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors
have nol reported, any incident of [raud committed in vour Company by iis
Officers or Employees, to the Audit Committee and / or to the Board under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 details of which needs to be
mentioned in this Report.

Auditors

M/s. 5. Mandal & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 314 188E),
was appointed by the Members of the Company at the 40th Annual General
Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second consecutive term of
o (Five] years commencing from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
held on September 24, 2024 till the conclusion of the 45th Annual General
Meeting 1o be held in the Gnancial year 2029-30. The Auditors’ Report on the
Annual Accounts of the Company forms part of the Annual Report of the
Company. The Auditors” Report does nol contain any gqualihcation, reservation
or adverse remark or disclaimer.




Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has based
on the recommendation of Audit Commitice approved appointment of M/s,
Mankani & Associales, [Firm Registration Number - S2018UP613300) Company
Secretaries, represented by its Pariner, Ms. Priya Mankam [ACS No. 34744, C,
P. No. 17947), to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the [nancial year ended March 31, 2025 15
annexed herewith and marked as Annexure - I to this report. The Sccrctarial
Audit Report does not contain any gqualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

Disclosure as required under Rule 8(5) (xii) of the Companies [Accounts)
Rules, 2014

The disclosure as per Rule 8(3) (xii) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,
as amended, is not applicable to the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Investments and Guarantees

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not made any investment,
has not given any loans, has not provided any guarantees, has nol provided any
security in connection with any lean, has not acquired securnties by way of
subscription, purchase or otherwise, in excess of the thresholds provided in
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 20123.

Managerial Remuneration, Particulars of Employees and related disclosure

Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 51} and Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appeintment and Remuneraton of
Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 are as follows:

A. Managerial Remuneration
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Statement on Maternity Benefit Compliance

Pursuant to the requirements of the Maternity Benelit Act, 1961, the Company
confirms its commitment to full compliance with all applicable provisions of the
Act,

During the reporting period, no employee availled maternity beneflits, However,
the Company has established the necessary policies and mechanisms to ensure
that all entitlements under the Act—such as paid maternity leave, nursing
breaks, and protection from dismissal during maternity leave—are provided as
and when reguired.

The Company remains [ully committed (o supporting its emplovees and ensuring
a safe, inclusive, and compliant workplace environment.

Disclosures wunder the Sexunal Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

Our Company firmly believes in providing a safe, supportivée and harassment
free workplace for each and every individual working for the Company through
various interventions and practices and has zero iolerance for sexual
harassment at workplace. It is the continuous endeavour of the management of
the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is
free from discrimination and harsssment including sexual harassment. No
complaints relating to the sexual harassment had been received during the year
under report.

Annual Performance

Evaluation of the Directors In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rules issued there under and the Listing Regulations, based on
the cnitena such as number of Board and Committes meetings attended dunng
the year, contributions o the decision making and relevant expertise to the
Board etc., the Board of Directors has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all the Directors based on the
criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In a
separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent
Directors, the Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole was
evaluated.

Corporate Governance

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certilicate from the Practicing
Company Secretary confirming corporate governance requirements as stipulated
under Listing Regulations and confirming that none of the Board of Directors of
the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or

40




continuing as a Director of the Company as prescribed under Listing Regulations
i enclosed as Annexure - II and forms part of this Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Indian Anancial services sector has demonstrated resilience and growth,
driven by factors such as increased retail participation, technological
advancements, and favourable regulatory devclopments. The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has implemented measures to enhance market
transparency and investor protection, fostering a conducive environment for
broking firms.

The company has implemented a robust risk management framework to identify,
assess, and mitigate potential risks. Key risks include:

« Market Volatility: Fluctuations in market conditions can impact trading
volumes and profitability.

Regpulatory Changes: Adherence to evolving SEBI repulations reguires
continuous momtoring and complhance.

« Cybersecurity Threats: Protecting client data and maintaining the integrity
of trading systems s paramount.
Mitgation stratcgics involve regular risk assessments, compliance audits, and
investment in cybersecurity infrastructure,

The company adheres to the highest standards of corporatc governance,
ensuring transparency and accountability in all operations. The Board of
Directors comprises experienced professionals with diverse expertise, and
various committees oversee key areas such as audit, risk management, and
remuneration.

The company is optimistic about the fumare, with plans to:

» Enhance Digital Presence: Leverage digital marketing and online platforms
to attract a wider audience.

Expand Product Offerings: Introduce new linancial products to meet the
evolving needs of clients.

Focus on Sustainability: Implement environmentally and  socially
responsible practices in business operations.

The company remains committed to deliverimg value (o its stakcholders
through strategic initiatives, operational excellence, and a client-centric
approach. The management is confident in navigating the challenges of
the financial markets and achicving sustained growth in the coming
years.




Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Annual Report, including those which relate to Management
Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s ohjectives, projections,
estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within
the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Although the expectatons are
based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.
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‘Annexure - [T’

Report on Corporate Governance

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our philosophy of Corporate Governance is founded on the pillars of fairness,
accountability, disclosures and (ransparency, equal Ueatment to all the
stakeholders and seocial responsibility. Your Company believes that Corporate
Governance extends beyond corporate laws. [1s fundamental objective 15 not merely
to fulfil legal requiremnents, but also the adherence to systems and procedures,
ensuring the commitment of the Board of Directors in managing the Company's
affairs in a transparent manner to mazimize the long-term wvalue of the
stalceholders at large.

Your Company has adopted an appropnate Corporate Governance [ramework to
ensure thmely and accurate disclosure on all material matters inchading the
financial position, performance, ownership and governance of the Company,

Your Company’s policies and practices relating to the Corporate Governance are
discussed in the following sections viz.:

Z. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board of Direclors of yvour Company has an optimum combination of Exccutive
and Non-Executive Directors to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has
five Directors (including one Woman Director), out of which one is Executive
Director, two are Non - Executive Non- Independent Director and two are Non
Executive, Independent Directors of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of your Compahy is Non-Executive,
Independent Director.

The Board has adequate mix of skills, expertise and competencies for running the
busginess of the Company. The following chart specifies the same:

of | Designation [ | Operitiond Management | Adminisptration Financa
Catcgory

| Chairman, i v v v ¥
Jayvanta Independent
Chowdhury | Director

Mr. Tarak | Managing
MNath Dey Director




‘Mr. Chand
Ratan Modi

.-I'-'Eﬂl'.l.-
Mon-

Director

Exccutive &

Independent

Mrs.
Chanchal
Rungta

Mr. Binod
Kumar
Eihani

Non-

M-

Director

Execoutive &

Independent

| Dhrector

Tnﬂ :ptfndt'nL

Composition of the Board, details of other directorships, committee positions
are given below:

Name I

Directors
Identifica
tion
Number
({DIN)

Enl:egu_ry
of
Directors

| Relationship
with other
Directors

No. of
Direct
orshi
ps
held
(imclu

Mr.
Jayanta
Chowdhu
v

| 10597724

Chairman,
Independe
nt Director

| None

Board
[incindin

of Membership/
Chairpersonship

in
Committees
this Co.)

Member

Chairperson

rJ1r_ Tarak
MNath Dy

Q0343396

Mr.
Chand

Ratan
Modi

00343685

Managing
Director

None

Non-
Executive
B MNon-
Independe
nt Director

Mr=.
Chanchal
Fungta

Mr. Binod
Kumar
Hihani

Q7290027

02471328

Mon-
Executive
o Non-
Independe

nl Director |

Independe
il Director

Father ol
Mrs.
Chanchal

Rungta

Daughter af
Chaned Ratan
Maodi

None




Notes:

Number of Directorships held exciudes Directorships in Proivate Limited
Companies, Foreign Companies, High Value Debt Listed Entities, Companies
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 [earlier Section 25 of the Companies
Act, 1936) and Alternate directorships. Only covers Membership / Chairpersonship
af Audit Commitiee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Listed and
Unhsted Public Limited Companies.

Nane of the Direcrors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Board Committees
and a Chairman of more than 5 such Committees, across all Companies in which
he / she is a Director.

None of the Directors holds directorships in more than 20 Companies and more
than 10 Public Compam#s pursuant Lo the provisions of the L‘:umpa.ni.e& Act, 2013,

The Board of Directors met 5 (five) times during the year under review. The
date of the Board Mestings and attendance thereat are furnished hereunder:

S1.No | Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors

. present =
April 03, 2024

May 28, 2024

July 37, 2024

November 11, 2024
February 05, 2025

Attendance of individual Directors at the Board Meetings and last AGM:

| Name of Director No. of Board Meetings | Attendance at last |
Attended AGM held on
September 24, 2024
Yes :
Yes ’
Yes
Yes
Yes

M. ._la:..'u_nta -C]';-uwd!'.]ur_l.-'_
| Mr. Tarak Nath Dey

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi
Mrs. Chanchal Hungta

Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani

L1 &N N LAt

Number of Shares and Convertible instruments held by Non- Executive
Directors:

As on March 31, 2025, none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any Share [
Convertible mstruments in the Company.

Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of independence, which are given
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
Listing Regulations and are Independent of the Management of the Company.

All the Independent Directors have given declaration of independence as per the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulabions.




During the year under review, meetings of Independent Directors of the Company,
as per the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
25(3) of the Listing Regulations, was held on February 12, 2025,

Familiarization Programme

Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the
Company has in place Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to
familiarize them about the Company and their role, rights and responsibalities in
the Company, The details of Familiarization Programme imparted dunng the
financial year 2024- 25, are uploaded on the website of the Company and can be
accessed through web-link htips: / fwww hwpl.co.in/index.html

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company’s Board of Directors has constituted the following Statutory
Committees to comply the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing Repulations, vig.!

l. Audit Commities;
1. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
l1I. Stakcholders Relationship Commuittee; and

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and
the respective Chairman of these Commitiees, determines the frequency of
the meetings of these Committees. The recommendations of the Committees
are submitted to the Board for their approval.

The Board of Directors has also adopied the following policies in line with
rhe requirement of the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013:

a) Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil mechanism);

b} Policy on Evaluartion of performances of Board ol Directors;

¢) Nomination and Remuneration Policy;

d) Risk Management Policy;

e)] Policy on Diversity of Board of Directors;

i} Policy on Suecceasian Planning for the Board and Senior Management;
g} Policy on Disclosure of Material Events [/ Information;

h) Policy for Preservation of Documents and Archival,

1) Policy on Famihansation Programme of Independent Directors;
i} Policy on Related Party Transactions;

k) Palicy on Determination of Material Subsidiary.




Audit Committee

The Compoaition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2025,
consists of following members viz.

1. Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani- Chairman
2. Mr. Chand Ratan Modi - Member
3. Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury - Memhber

The Company Sccrctary acts as the Scerctary to the Committee
The terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

. Owerseeing our Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of
ite financial information to ensure that the financial statement i1s
correct, sufficient and credible:

. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appoiniment, and
replacement, remuneration, and terms of appointment of the statutory
auditor and the Gxation of audit fee;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and perlormance and
the effectivencss of audit process;

. Approval of payments to the statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by statutory auditors;

Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and
auditor's report thercon before submission to the Board for approval,
with particular reference to:

1. Matters required to be stated in the Director’s responsibility
statement to be included in the Board's report in terms ol Section
134(3)ic) of the Companies Act, 2013,

. Changes, il any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
for the same;

. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exeroise
of judgment by management;

. Bignificant adjustments made in the financial statements arising
out of audit findings;

. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to
financial statements;

. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

ol




7. Qualifications and modified opinions in the draft audit report.

Reviewing with the management, the gquarterly, half-yearly and annual
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

. Scratiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

. Valuation of undertakings or assets of our Company, wherever il 15
NMECEs5ATY,

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
syslems;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of our
Company with related parties;

. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses [ application of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, ete)), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document J/ prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency menitoring the utilization of
proceeds: of a public or nghis issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report
their genuine concerns or grievances;

. Beviewing with the managemernil, the performance of statutory and
internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems;

. Reviewing the adegquacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the internal audit department, stalling and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure eoverage and
frequency of internal audirt;

. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and
follow up thereon;

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or
a [ailure of internal control systems of 8 material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;




. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern,

Laoking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, sharcholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

. Approval of appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing
the qualifications, expericnce and background, cte. of the candidate;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism, in case the
same is existing;

. Carrying out any other functions as provided under the Companies Act,
the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable laws;

. To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend

the Audit Committee charter from time to time;

. Overseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the
chairman of the Audit Committee directly hearing grievances of
victimization of the employees and directors, who used the wigil
mechanism Lo report genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional
CASes;

. Recommending to the Board af Directars the appoaintment and removal
of the external auditor, fixation of audit fees and approval for payment
for any other services;

. Reviewing the utilization of loans and [ or advances from investment by
the holding company mn the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or
10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower inchuding
existing loans / advances / investments; and

. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of
schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed
entity and itz shareholders.

The Company's Audit Cormnmittee met 5 [Five) dmes during the financial
vear ended March 31, 2025 viz. April 03, 2024; May 28, 2024; July 29,
2024; November 11, 2024 and February 05, 2025.

The following tahle presents the details of attendance at the Audit
Committee meetings held duning the vear ended March 31, 2025:
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Memhbers No. of Meetings |
Category Attended

Mr., Binod Kumar Chairman, Non- S5

Bihani Executive - Independent
Chrector

Mr. Chand Ratan Madi Member, Non-Executive
B Non-Independent
Dhrector

Mr. Jayanta Chn_wdhur_'.r Member, Non-Executive |
Independent Direclor

Notes:

The CFO was an invitee to the Audit Committee Meetings and he attended the
meetings, All the members of the Audit Committee have requisite accounting
and financial management expertise.

Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani, Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the
previous Arnnual General Meeting held on September 24, 2024 and responded
to the gueries raised by the shareholders.

Yearly disclosure relating o SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 was placed before the Commuttee,

All the recommendations made by the Audit Commitlee were accepled by the
Board ol Directors.

I1. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Composition of the Nominabion and Remuneration Commitlee as on
March 31, 2025, consists of following members viz.

Mr, Binod Kumar Bihan: Chairman
Mr, Chand Ratan Moodi Member
Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee,

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

a. Formulate the eriteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend o the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration of the directors, keyv managerial personnel and other
emplovees;




b. Fermulation of criteria lor evaluation of independent directors and the
Board,

¢. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

d. Identify persons who are qualificd to become directors or who may be
appointed m senior management in accordance with the entera laid down,
recomnmend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out
evaluation of every director's performance;

e Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and
campensation matters;

f. Determining our Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for
executive directors including pension rights and any compensation payment,
and determining remuneration packages of such directors,

g. Delermine compensalion levels payable to the senior management
personnel and other stafl (as deemed necessary), which shall be market-
related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable compenent;

h. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the
context of the then current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

i. Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation
committee under the Securities and Exchange Board of India [Share Based
Emplovee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

1. Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no vielation,
by an employee of any applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015; or

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ([Prohibition of
Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to the Securitics
Market] Regulations, 2003.

k. Determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors;

1. Perform such ather activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors
and / or are statutorily prescribed under any law to be attended to by such
committes;




m. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable (o
senior management; and

n. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare
a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent
dircctor. The person recommended ta the Board for appointment as an
independent director shall have the capabilities identilied in such
description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Commuttee may:

1. Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

2. Consider eandidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard
to diversity; and

3. Consider the time commitmants of the candidates.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration policy in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations and in order to harmonize the aspirations of human resources
consistent with the goals of the Company which inter alia includes
Company’s policy on Board Diversily, selection, appointment and
remuneration of Directors, criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of a Director and criteria for performance
cvaluation of the Directors.

Composition and attendance at Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings:

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 {Two) imes
during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 vie. May 28, 2024 and July
29, 2024,

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination &
Remuneratdon Committce mectings held during the yvear ended March 31,
2025:

Members ignat No. of Meetings |
Attended

Mr, Binod Kumar Chairman, Non- 2
Bihani Executive - Independent
e e Director |
Mr. Chand Ratan Moodi | Member, Non-Executive

B Non-Independent
I o Director

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury | Member, Non-Exccutive
- Independent Director




Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Hegulations, the Board of Directors hias carried out the annual performance
evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all the Directors based on
the crteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the
Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. The criteria for performance
evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and
structure, effectiveness of Board processes, informarion and functioning etc.
The criteria for performance evaluation of Committees of the Board included
aspecis like composition of Committees, effectivencss of Committes mechings
etc, The criteria for performance evaluation of the individual Directors
included aspects on contribution to the Board and Committee meetings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inpuls in meetings e,

Remuneration to Directors for the financial Year 2024-25:

In accordance with the principles of good corporate governance and in line
with the Company's remuneration policy, the Independent Directors have
not been paid any sitting fees, commission, stock options, or any other lorm
of compensation or benefiis, whether in cash or land, for attending Board
meetings, Committes meetings, or for any other services rendered in their
capacity as Directors of the Company lor the inancial year 2024-25.

The Company acknowledpges the valuable guidance and oversight provided
by the Independent Directors in steering the Company’s strategic direction
and ensuring effective governance, even though they have voluntarily
forepone any remuneration,

This policy of non-remuncration reflects the commitment of the Independent
Directors to uphold high standards of ethical and Oduciary responsibility,
aligning with the long-term interests of the Company and its stakeholders.

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

During the Onancial year 2024-25, no remuneration was paid to the
Executive Directors of the Company. This includes:

« Salary
« Perquisites and allowances
« Commission




+ Performance-linked incentives
« Stock options or any other form of compensation

The Executive Directors have not drawn any remuneration, either from the
Company for the said financial yvear.

This disclosure is made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and relevant corporate governance requirements. It
also reflects the Executive Directors' commitment to the long-term goals and
sustainability of the Company without drawing financial benefit in their
exccutive capacity during the reporting period.

IlI. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Composition and attendance at Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
Meeting:

In compliance with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has
constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee inter alia, to consider
and review the complaints received from shareholders. Detail of share
transfers | transmissions, if any, approved by the Committee are placed at
the Board Mectings {rom time Lo time,

The Company's Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 2 (Twa] times
during the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 viz. May 28, 2024 and July
24, 2024,

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Stakeholders’
Relationship Commitiee meetngs held during the year ended March 31,
2025:

Members Designation & No. of Meetings
| Category Attended
Mr. Chand Ratan Modi | Chairperson, Non- 2
Exmcutive & Non-
Independent Director

“Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury | Member, Non-Executive
- Independent Directar

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta | Mem trET,-NﬂH-ET;:EGUI:iVE
& Non-Independent
| Director

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee and is the
Compliance Officer of the Company.




Mr. Chand Ratan Modi, Chairperson of the Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committee attended the previous Annual General Meeting held on September
24 2024

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders® Relationship
Committee are as follows:

a. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new / duplicate certificales,
general meetings ete. |

b. Review of measures taken for effective cxercise of voting rights by
shareholders;

. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the histed entity in
respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar % Share Transler
Agent;

d. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of
dividend warrants / annual reporls [ statutory notices by the sharcholders of
the Company; and

c. Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the Listing
Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder, each as amended or other applicable law.

SEEI Complaints Redressal System [SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints
redressal system.

The salient features of this system are centralised database of all complaints,
online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned compames
and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its
current status.

Your Company has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to
resolve all investor complaints received through SCORES or otherwise within
the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint.




However, SEBI vicle its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/P/CIR/2022/0150 dated November 07, 2022 has
mandated the investors to first take up their grievances for redressal with the
Company, through their designated persons / officials who handle issues
relating to compliance and redressal of investor grievances, In case, the
Company fails to redress the complaint within the statutory timeling, the
investor may then file his / her complaint in SCORES.

No Shares are lying in Demat Suspense Account [ unclaimed suspense
Account, Hence, the disclosure of the same is not applicable,

There were no sharcholder complainta / requests pending at the beginning of
the year. Also, no shareholder complaints / requests have been received

during the year.

Exclusive e-mail id for Investor Grievances: hwpl 1l 7i@email. com.

Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal

SEBI, by consolidating its Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_1AD-
1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, read with the corrigendum cum
amendment Circular having N, SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE _IAD
1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023 and amendment Circular having
Mo, SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE IAD-3/P/CIR/2023/191 dated December 20,
2023 has issued a Master Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE /OIAE [AD-
3/P/CIR/2023/ 195 dated December 28, 2023 on "Online Resolution of
Disputes in the Indian Securities Market”.

Through the said Circulars, SEBI has established a common ODR Portal to
harness online conciliation and arbitration for resclution of disputes in the
Indian Securities Market,

Post exhausting the option to resolve grievances with the RTA [ Company
directly and through existing SCORES platform, the investors can initiate
dispute resolution through the ODR Portal (https:/ /smartedr.n/login) and
the same can also he accessed through the Company's website
https: / /www. hwpl.co.in/ contact-us. html,




2. General Body meetings

Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs)
were held:

Year Venue Date Special Resolutions
passed

2023- | Registered | 24.09.2024
24
2022- Hegistered 18.009.2023 =
23 Office ..
2021- | Registered 15.09.2021 Shifting of Registered Office
22 Office of Company from the Siate of
Nagaland to the State of West
Bengal, under the jurisdiction
al Registrar of Companies,
Eolkata and conaequent
amendmeants o the
Memorandum of Association
af the Company

Details of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during the year:

Year |Venue Date Time | Special Resolutions passed
2024- | Registered 25.006.2024 | 11 a. Appeintment of Mr. Jayanta
25 Office AL, Chowdhury [DIN:

010397724 as Non-

Execulive Independent

Director.

. Approval for increase in
overall borrowing limita of
the Company as pe
Section 180(1) (¢) of The
Companies Act 2013.

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot:

There was no special resolution passed through postal ballot during the
financial vear 2024-25_ Alsa, as at date, no Special Resolution is proposad (o
be passcd through Postal Ballot.

3. Disclosures
a. Statutory Compliance
The Company has complied with rules and regulations prescribed by
the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange Board of India and any

other statutory authority relating Lo capital market.
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b. Related Party Transactions

The Company has adopted the Related Party Transaction Policy, which
15 available on its website and can be accessed al web hink
hitps:/ [www hwpleoan findex himl.

The details of all signilicant transactions with related parties are
periodically placed before the Audit Committee. The Company has
entered into related party transactions as set out in notes to accounts,
which do not have potential conflict with the interests of the Company
at large.

. Subsidiary

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture
company as on March 31, 2025, Accordingly, the requirements relating
to consolidated financial statements and related disclosures are not
applicable for the financial year 2024-25,

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle BElower Policy

In line with Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the
Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to

report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
incidents of fraud or vinlation of Code of Conduct that could adversely
impact the Company's operations, business performance and / or
reputation, in a secure and confidential manner. The Company has also
provided the complainant direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. Further, no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been placed on the website of the
Company and web-link thereto is; https:/ /wew hwpl.co.in/index. html.

Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the
Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable.




Non-Mandatory Reguirements

Particulars

| The Board

Hu:rn—E}:ccum-c Chairperson may be entitled to
' maintain & chairperson's office at the listed
| entity’s cXpense and also allowed
reimbursement of expenses incurred in
performance of his / her dufties

Not Applicahle

i Bhareholders' Right
A hall-yearly declaration of fnancial
performance including summary of significant
events in last six-months, may be sent to each
household of shareholders

Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The listed entity may move towards a regime of
| inancial statements with unmodified opinion

e posts of Chairperson and the|
Managing Director or the Chief Executive
Officer

The listed entity may appoint separate persons
to the post of the Chairperson and the Managing
Director or the Chiefl Executive Officer, such
that the Chairperson shall:

| a. be a non-executive director; and

k. not be related to the Managing Director or the
Chiel Executive Ollicer as per the definition of
the term “relative” defined under the Companies
Act, 2013

Reporting of internal auditor

The internal auditor may report directly to the
| Audit Committee

Complied

Complied, there are no
qualification in  the
Audit Report

The {‘hawman nf the
Company is Non-
Executive, Independent
Director.

Comphed




5. Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of
sub-paras (2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations

There are no non-compliances of any requirements of Corporate Governance
Report of sub-paras (2) te (10) of Part C mentioned in Schedule V of the
Listing Regulations.

In accordance with Regulation 26(6]) of the Listing Regulations, we hereby
confirm that no employee including Key Managerial Personnel or Director or
Promoter of the Company has entered into any agrecement for himself |/
hersell or on behall of any other person, with any sharcholder or any other
third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with
dealings in the securities of the Company

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial statermnents are prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, The financial statements have also
been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of
the Companics Act, 2013,

Model Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Team

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all its director's
and members of the Senior Manapgement, which is in consonance with the
requirements of the Listing Regulations. The said code is available on the
website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link:
https:/ fwww. hwpl.coan/index. html,

All the Beoard Members and members of the Senior Management have
alflirmed compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The draft Directors’ Responsibility Statement signed by Mr. Tarak Nath Dey,
Director which is included in the Board's Report for the financial year 2024-

25 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on May 15,
2023.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

In terms of Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, Reconciliation of Share
Capital Audit is carried out on a quarterly basis by a Practicing Company
Secretary with a view to reconcile the total admitted capital with National




Securitics Depository Limited (“NDSL”) and those held in physical form with
the total issued, paid up and listed capital of the Company. The audit report,
inter alia, confirms that the Register of Members is duly updated and that
demat / remat requests were confirmed within stipulated time etc. The said
report is also submitied to Metropolitan Siock Exchange of India.

10.Risk Management Policy

The Company has in place Risk Management System which takes care of
risk identification, assessment and mitigation, There are no risks, which in
the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.,

11.Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report
trading by insiders for prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the
Company. The code, inter-alia, prohibits purchase [/ sale of shares of the
Company by Directors and designated person while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and
during the period when the Trading Window is closed.

12.Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. Number of Comnplaints filed during the linancial year - NIL

b. Number of Complaints disposed of during the fnancial year - Not
Applicable

c, Mumber of Complaints pending as on end of the financial year - Not
Applicable

13.Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of loans and advances in
the nature of loans to firms / companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount

Mot Applicable, as the Company did not provide any loans and advances mn
the naturc of loans to firms / companics in which directors are interested.

14.Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date
and place of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of
the statutory anditors of such subsidiaries

Not Applicable, as the Company does not have any material subsichiary.




15.Means of Communication

Website;: The Company's website hitps:/ /www hwpl.co.in/index.html.
contains, inter alia, the updated information pertaining to quarterly, halt-
vearly and annusl financial resulis, annual reports, and shareholding
pattern, important announcements. The said information is available in a
user friendly and downloadable formn,

Finaneial Results: The quarterly, hall-yearly and annual financial results of
the Company are submitted to Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India after
approval of the Board of Directars of the Company.

Annual Report containing inter alia Financial Statement, Board's Report,
Auditors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report is circulated to the Members
and others entitled thereto and is also available on website of the Company
hitps: | fewww.hwpl.co.in /mdex. html,

Uploading on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India: The quarterly
results, quarterly compliances and all other corporate communications to
the Stock Exchanges are filed elecironically on Listing Centre for
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India.

16.General Shareholder's inﬁ:-rmatiun

_Annual General Hethng -
 Date, time and venue The 41st Annual General Meeting
{AGM) of the Company will be held on
Thursday, September 1 1th, 2025 at
S 4:30 p.m. 15T _
Financial Year Financial Year is April 01 to March
) 31 of the following year

Qu.ar‘l:erlr results will be declared as per the following tentative
Financial reporting for the By the first fortrught ol August, 2025
gquarter ending June 30,
2025

Financial reporting for the By the first forinight ol November,
half year ending September | 2025

30, 2025 - -
Finanecial repnrting for the By the first fortright of Fl"hﬂjﬂﬁ?
guarter ending December 2026
31, 2025 -
Financial reporting for the By the end of May, 2026
year ending March 31,2026 | p
Dates of Book Closure September 5, 2025 to September 11,
2025
Record date for Dividend | N.A.
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. | Dividend Payment Date N.A.

Listing on Stock Exchanges | Your Company's shares are listed on:
& Payment of Listing Fees Metropolitan Stock Exchange of
India

205{A), 2nd floor, Piramal Agastya
Corporate Parle, Kamani Junction,
LBS Road, Kurla [West), Mumbai -
400070,

Your Company has paid the annual
listing fee to the exchange.
Stock Code / ISIN SYMBOL: HOTAHOTI
ISIN: INE925E01012
Registrars and Transfer Niche Technologies Pyl Ltd
Apents JA Auckland Place, Tth Floor,
Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700 D17
Share Transfer System In terms of Regulation 401} of the
Listing Repgulations, as amended,
transfer of securities has  been
elfected only in demateniahzed Iorm
with effect [rom January 24, 2022,
Further, SERI vide its circular dated
January 25, 2022, mandated that all
service requests for issuc of duplicale
certificate, claim from unclaimed
suspense account, renewal [
exchange of securities certificate,
endorsement, subdivision [ splitting
/]  oconsolidation of certificate,
transmission and  transposition
which were allowed in physical form
should be processed in
dematerialised form only.

The necessary forms for the above
request are available on the websile
of the Company at
https:/ feww. hwpl.eco.in /index. html.

Address for Correspondence | 4, SYNAGOGUE STREET, ROOM
NO: 405, 4TH FLOOR, KOLKATA,
| T T | West Bengal, India, 700001

. | Dematerialization of Shares | Shares held mn Dematenalized form:
and Liguidity 1,99.02,120

Share held in Physical form: 97,840

s




Electronic Clearing Service
[ECS)

Members are requested to update |
their bank account details with ther
respective  depository participants
{for shares held in the elecironic
form) or write Lo the Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents (for
shares held in the phyvsical form, if
anvj

Investor Gnmpla:intn to be
addressed to

Details of BSuspension of
Securities from trading, if

Registrars and Transfer Agents or
Company Secretary, at the addresses
mentioned carlier
Not applicable

Yy

Commodity price risk or
foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities
List of all credit ratings
obtained by the entity along
with any revislons thereto
during the relevant financial
year, for all debt instruments
of such entity or any fixed
deposit programme or any
scheme or proposal of the
listed entity involving
mobilization of funds,

Disclosure of certain type of
agreements binding listed
entities as per clause 5A of
paragraph A of Part A of
Schedule III of the Listing

regulations

Date: 15.05.2025
Place: Kolkata

| The

whether in India or abroad |

Company does not have

commodity price risk.

Not applicable, as the Company did
not issue any debt instruments or
any fixed deposit programme or any
scheme or proposal involving
mobilization of funds, in India or
abroad.

| There are no agreement impacting
management or control of the
Company or imposing any restrichion
or create any lability upon the |
Company.

By order of the Board of Directors,

S W

Tarak N Dey
Managing Director
DIN: 00343396
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DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR ON CODE OF
CONDUCT AS REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE V OF THE
LISTING REGULATIONS

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of SEBI [Listing
Obligations and Disciosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015, T hereby declare that
all the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of Hotahoti Wood
Products Ltd (the 'Company’] have affirmed. compliance with provisions of the
applicable Code of Conduct of the Company during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2025,

For Hotahoti Wood Produets Ltd

.} | A
Tarak Nath Pey _;"'3.-,.-'_;_ i
Managing Director ——F
DIN: 00343396

Date: 15.05.2025
Place: Kolkata
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JOINT CERTIFICATION ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(Pursuani to Regqulation I 7{8) read with Sehedule IT Part B of the SEBI [LODE] Beguiations,

2015

We, Tarak Nath Dey, Managing [hrector and - Tripty Modi, Chief Finaneial Officer cerlify that:

1.

L

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the vear ennded
March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our kmowledge and belief;

(i] These statements do not contain any materially uniroe statement or omit any
material fact nor contain statements that might be misleading,

(i} These statements present true and fair view of the Company's alfairs and are
in compliance with the edsting accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations,

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Comipany . during the: vear, which are fraudulent, illegal or in wviolation of the
Company's code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls, we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we
have discloged to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of the internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that we
have taken to rectify the identified deficiencies,

We have indicated, ased on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, (o the
Auditors and Audit Committes:

Bignificant changes, if anv, in the internal control over financial reporting during
the vear;

Bignificant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made durning the year and
that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

Instances of significant freud of which we have become awane and the iovolvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employvee having significant role in the
Company’s interoal control svstem over financial repacting

For Hotahoti Wood Products Lid

TN ==T’h.£:1

Tarak Nath Dey

oy
..l'll

= :.' ) \E5 0/ Tripty Modi
Managing Director L‘“ufnﬁ S Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00343396 el By PAN: BFCPM8562H

Date: 15.05.2025
Place: Kollkata




S. MANDAL & CO.
2973, SEVEN TANKS LANE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DUM DUM N,
KOLEATA -700 030
Phone: 2356-6768
2546-3269
Fax : (033) 2546-3268
E-Mul : 5§ mondal coflynhoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD.
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of HOTAHOTI WOOD
PRODUCTS LTD. (“the Company"}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income/(expense),
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information and other explanatory information (“the Financial Statements”).In our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”™) in the
manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March2025, and
its loss and other comprehensive income/(expense), changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company In accordanece with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinton on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial 5tatements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Serial Key Audit | Auditor’s Response
No. Matter | |
F Valuation of | We have assessed the procedure of sale and purchase of |
Investment | investments including year end valuation. We have
| obtained all sources of documents for valuation of
unguoted shares and its subsegquent sale.
2. Revenue We have reviewed the procedure of revenue recognition in
Recognition and | relation to interest income. Mo income has been recorded
Provision faor for NPA assets. The loans which have become NPA,
doubtful debts | necessary provisions are made in the books.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thercon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, the Board's report including annexure to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholders information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our
Auditors Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any ferm of assurance or conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Stalements, our responsibility s to
read the Other Information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or other information obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of thic Other
Information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimales that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concermn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness ot management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the Financial Statemenls or, if such disclosures are [nadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial 5tatements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s  Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a

reasonably knowledgeable Liser of the standalone
financialstatementsmaybeinfluenced. Weconsiderquantitativematerialityandqualitativefa
ctors in {i}planning

thescopeofourauditworkandinevaluatingtheresultsofourwork;and(iijtoevaluatetheeffecto
fanyidentified misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.,

We also provide these charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,-and. to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledpge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(k) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheat, the Statement of Pratit and Lass including ether comprehensivie income and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

{e) The observations on financial transactions do not reveal any matters which have any
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

{f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure-B.

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
far which there were any material TGTESEEEDEEEES.




ii.

™.

Vi,

There were no amounts due which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledee and belief,
no funds{which are material either individually or in the aggresate)have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds} by the company to or in any other person(s} or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
ne fundsiwhich are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or Indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

{c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii}) of Rule 11{e), as provided
under {a} and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For 5. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

F1rr‘n’§ Rez}stratinn No. 314188E

H. C. D&yl

Partner

Membership Mo. 050190 ;i
UDIN: 25¢80iqpBrMa Lk SECEAE

Place: Kolkata

Date: 15" May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report W the Members of Hotahoud Wood Products Litd of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the

Company and the books of account and records examined hy us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

i (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE™) and relevant
details of right-ol-use assels,

(k) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE
are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our
opinion, and according to the infermation and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c} In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the Immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not revalued its PPE during the vear.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year
or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder,

il. (@) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical
inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to it

(b) During the year, the Company has not availed any working capital limit from Banks or
Financial Institutions on the basis of security of Loans.

iii. [a) Since the Company's principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it

(b} The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company [‘NBFC'), registeéred under
provisions of RBI Act, 1934. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the investments made, gpuarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees,
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

[¢] The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFCT), registered under
provisions of RBl Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with
provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning Norms, monitors repayments of principal and paymes rest by its
customers as stipulated. In our opinion and according to the j
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given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and in cases where repayment of
principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken
by the Company. According te the information and explanation made available to us,
reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

{d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made
thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly,
the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors and report total
amount overdue induding principal and/or payment of interest by its customers for more than
90 days. In cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as
stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company. According to the information and
explanation made available fo us, reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery
thereof.

{e]) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause
3{iti}{e] of the Order is not applicable to it

(f) Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made available
to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has nol granted any
leans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of Section 185
of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act; the
other provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanatons given to us, the Company has not accepted
any depasits from public during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March
31, 2025 and hence the provisions of the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company;

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) In owr opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues relating to
amounts deducted faccrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material stamutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year,
Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident hind, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
duty of  customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2025 for a perind of more than six months from the date they became payable,

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
hasis of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come
across any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been swrrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961},
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ix. {a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other horrowings
to financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis af our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by anv bank or
financial institution or government or any gevernment authority or any other lender.
{c]) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes hy the Company.
(d]) The company has not taken any lunds [rom any enlily or person on account of or to meet
the abligations of its associate. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

%. {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of
public offer during the current financial year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment
of equity shares during the year,

xi. (&) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(¢} Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

®il, The Company is not a Nidhi company, Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of 1ts business.

xv. According to the information and explanations given o us, In our opinion during the year
the Company has not entered inte any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.
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xvi, [a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration.

{b) According to the information and explanations given ta us, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid CoR from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

{c) According to the infermation and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company ['CIC ) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year and not in the
immediately preceding financial year covered by our andit,

xvill, During the year, no change in Statutory Auditors of the Company have taken place,

xix, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liahilities, along with details provided in Note 2B to the Fipancial statements which describe
the maturity analysis of assets & liabilides other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this Is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
tall due.

#x. The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social Responsibility
are not applicable to the company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicabie.

x%xi.The Company is not required to prepare any Consolidated Financial Statement,
accordingly Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable,

For S MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Repgistration No. 314188E

(H. C. Dey)
Partner

Membership No. 050190
UDIN: P60 50190 BM0LKS 5K €

Place: Kolkata
Date:15t%h May, 2025
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ANMEXLURE - 'B" TO AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HOTAHOTI WOOD
PRODUCTS LTD as of tarch 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Director of the Company 15 responsible for estabiishing and maintaining intermal
financialcontrols based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reparting fssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financlal contrals that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of iks assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completensss of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls owver
financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrels, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Mote reguire that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate intermal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain avdit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over fimancial reporting and their cperating effectiveness, Dur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exisis, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal control based
an the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the awditor's judsement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal financial contrels system over financial
reporting.

Contd.




Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s interral financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that-

{1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact
the transactions and dispositions af the assets of the company;

i2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to  permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, o disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the |nherent limitations of internal financial controls over fimancial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nat be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal financial controels over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Dpinion

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based an “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Wote on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India™.

For S.MANDALE CO.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration Mo, 2141885

(H.C.DEY)
Partmer
MembershipMo. 050190

UDIN: £ S0 50190 AMOAKS €57¢€

Kalkata
Date: 153" May, 2025
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Particulars

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED
Motes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

{ Rs. in "000)

A= at
31si March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Cash an hand

Balances with Banks - in

| Cheques on Hand

)
44

a9

Total

43

426

1
34

1. Other Bank
Balances

Particulars

| Rs. in "000")

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Unclaimed
Dividend
ACCouns

Fied  Depozits
with banks having
onginal maturity of
more  than 3
manths

Total

i
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HOTAHOTE WD PROBUCTS LMITED

Nabes 1o the Finascil Stotoments f the vaar ended 3181 March, 1025

& Ddher Financlad Assets

[ Res. in 'O007)
As af 315t As at 31st
fintnida March, 2026 March, 2024
Irleres! acorued but not dus - -
Income ecorued but pot due -
Tatal = %
7. CRhoe Man-Financisl Asssés
- . o D — | Rs. in 0007}
As at 315t Az af Bt
e March, 2025 March, 2024
Balaneas with Govwarnment Ananliss * 464 442
Other Receivebles 4 7R 4,503
#cvance Againsl Capital Goriracts 1,77 696 1,72, 696
Fm| 1,82.958 1,771,711
*represents dance hying wih Beserie Authanbes
Kote : § Inventores
(s in "000°)
As at 31st As at Hst
Particufary March, 2025 March, 2024
Stock-n-1race 1,55, 364 155,886
1,55.966 1,55 866
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HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Stataments for the year ended 31st March, 2025
Mote: 17
Change in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade
= ( Rs. in '000')
Asat Az at
1|Opening Stock 1,55, 866 155866
_ 2|Ciesing Stock 1,665,466 1,35 466
Todad - ]
Purchase of Stock (Rs. in '000°)
Az at As at
5L No. PAMCUIATS | 349t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
{Furchase of atock . -
Total 3
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HOTAHOTI WOOD FROCLECTS LIKITED
Mo b the Plsansial Sistowsris for the yosronded 3et March, 2038

B letnresl Inzoma [ As. n 000°)
[Figer thie year eed el 310 March, 025 For the year andsd 316 March, 2004
THICTLsST
= ﬁnminﬂ €n Finnscisl bcani v On Fimancm| | On Financ sl incrost | Sk
moanured ot | momurst gt | TINOS | o sredat | measuredat | PGS AssE
L] clansles mi fali value
Bab walue | Amcaibied i o Tadr vabu g Aemartiael sahne ks
thiougn 0G| et ;_..H_.IH.._. treough OG1 Cosy | ™MD
sl e Loama® hL
Inbaat oo from vsesinmks
Inlaseal on depocle win Banke - - -
e imteres ncomes

[ Taial

“this compiarey hi prowkded inferest free loon toami imreinectones & property prieedn bmiled due ioowhich iferesl incose s el oo gosed.

5. Difwir 1nzofive

[ Az =407

Farilzulirs

For the year endesd 388 Barch 105

For Bha yoar orded 3168 Manch, 204

THal e TIORE, (i e lBCINe [T o T B00SE
Phed 1 (o) G thsezcoggian ulprogesty, pland

ad aquiprnes

Inlnscel of Eome T3 Rslnd

e

Tolal

a3




ROTAHOTI WOHID FROCUCTE LNITED
Hities 1 the Fisancal Satamenis for the yedr erded Fet Barch, M6

. Fineeace Cosls i R, D3
Particidors Far e vaar seded Fial March, 2028 Far the yaar andsd Yt March, 204
Qi Finsncul
Ikl fies mearsured | On Financia! Eabilftes | On Fnancial Gakiites Girs Firancial
Ffarvalm  |measind af Aot sed) measud e valun | BobliSes measured
thiough profit or Lo #ircagh profit or logs | ot Amortised Cost
koas
213
[ K& InYaDT}
Far tha year sedhed 315k March, 30
L |
|
| R In 008}

For the year ended 3158 March, 2028

For the yoar ended 315t March, 2031

Tl [
i 16}
5% 55
T 144
& |
B P

414

i

o A in THAT)
Particulory For e yodr ended 3168 Manch 2S5 Foor the yeo ended 5iet March, 204
B Bapliniy' - Siahdany Bl Fees: G 3
Far G Sardvos |Cartficatice plo 11 15
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